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County of Alameda, General Services Agency – Purchasing

RFP No. SIPP-2018, Addendum No. 1

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

ADDENDUM No. 1
to

RFP No. SIPP-2018
for

Senior Injury and Prevention Programs 

and 

Brown Bag Services
Specification Clarification/Modification and Recap of the Networking/Bidders Conferences held on January 31, 2018 and February 1, 2018

Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

I. Revision to RFP Table of Contents
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II. Revisions to RFP section I. Statement of Work


A. SCOPE
a. Page 6, Senior Injury Prevention Program
1. Home modifications:  Residential modifications of homes that are necessary to facilitate the ability of older individuals to remain at home and that are not available under other programs.  Includes minor repairs/renovations in order to meet safety, health issues, and code standards. Fall risk screening, assessment & education will be included as part of a Home Modification Intervention: A comprehensive fall risk assessment is to be performed by a professional.  Appropriate screening and education on fall risk reduction in the home will be provided.   The AAA reimbursement rate is $650 per home modification intervention. (Professional Home Assessment and Education at a maximum of $150; and Home Modification at a maximum of $500)  Based on $20,000 of funding, 31 seniors will be served.  The Service Unit of Measure is 1 client home modification intervention.
b. Page 10, Group Physical Activity Sessions
f. Tai Chi for Arthritis: Is an acceptable group exercise program for Senior Injury Prevention funds (not Title III-D).  Tai Chi for Arthritis programs must adhere to the following requirements:
· Participants must attend a minimum of 16 hours of Tai Chi, either by attending one hour per week for 16 weeks or attending two hours per week for eight weeks;
· Program must be led by a certified Tai Chi for Health Institute instructor.
· Participants must attend at least one class session per week.
· Participants must be strongly encouraged to practice the program at home for 30 minutes at least 4 times per week
III. Revisions to RFP section II. Calendar of Events

Page 15, section II, CALENDAR OF EVENTS
	EVENT
	DATE/LOCATION

	Request Issued
	January 22, 2018

	Written Questions Due
	by 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, February 1, 2018

	Networking/Bidders
Conference #1

	Wednesday, January 31, 2018

@ 1:00 P.M.
	at: Alameda County SSA- Adult

& Aging Dept.
6955 Foothill Blvd.
1st floor, Suite 137
Oakland, CA. 94605

	Networking/Bidders

Conference #2
	Thursday, February 1, 2018 @

1:00 P.M.
	at: Alameda County SSA- Adult

& Aging Dept.
6955 Foothill Blvd.
1st floor, Suite 137

Oakland, CA. 94605

	Addendum Issued
	Tuesday, February 13, 2018

	Vendor Letter of Intent to submit a bid due
	February 21, 2018

Please submit letter of intent by FAX to Sandra Braxton:
FAX # (510) 577-1962

	Response Due
	Wednesday, February 28 by 2:00 p.m.

	Evaluation Period
	March 1-March 30, 2018

	Notice of Intent to Award
	April 16, 2018

	Board Letter Recommending Award Issued
	June, 2018

	Board Consideration

Award Date
	June, 2018

	Contract Start Date
	July 1, 2018


IV. Revision to Exhibit A Bid Response Packet

Page 5, RFP Pre-Screening Response Checklist, Response Format:

	Item
	
	(

	1.
	One (1) original proposal marked “Original” plus five (5) ten (10) copies of the proposal.
	

	2.
	The “original” bid response must be signed in blue ink with an authorized signature.
	

	3.
	The “original” bid response is to be either loose-leaf or in a three (3)-ring binder, not bound.
	

	4.
	Proposals must be printed on white 8 ½” by 11” paper.  The font must be at least 12-point type in “Times New Roman” or equivalent font.  Lines shall be single-spaced.
	

	5.
	Table of Contents:  Bid responses shall include a table of contents listing the individual sections of the quotation/proposal and their corresponding page numbers.  Tabs should separate each of the individual sections.
	


V. Responses to Written Questions (In no particular order)
Q1) In the SIPP RFP in the medication management section, you refer to the service unit of measure as one contact.  I believe you meant to say service unit of measure as one client?  Throughout the RFP it appears that the overall intent for the programs is: when you have word ‘client’ I believe you intended to define it as 1 individual unduplicated with the fiscal year, such as in the home modification section.  When you have the word ‘contact’ I believe you intended to define it as 1 service contact per person—which can be duplicated individuals, such as how it is used in the group physical activity area.  Therefore, should med management be 1 client?  And just to keep things uniform, perhaps in the brown bag section, you should remove ‘senior’ and use ‘client.” 
A1) The Medication Management unit is correctly defined as 1 contact and not 1 client. When 1 client receives 2 Medication Management contacts it is counted as 2 contacts for service unit reporting. The reimbursement rate of $80 per contact equates to 250 contacts per $20,000. Only 167 unduplicated clients are required to be served per $20,000 (250 contacts).  Based on feedback from current service providers, the AAA expects that some clients may require more than 1 review during the annual contract period.
Q2) Why is MOB, tai chi, and enhance fitness in the Social Services RFP as well as in the Senior Injury Prevention RFP?  If a CBO is planning to submit a bid for MOB for example, do you have guidance about how a provider would go about selecting which RFP to use?
A2) Enhance Fitness, Tai Chi: Moving for Better Balance, and A Matter of Balance are available for funding under both the Senior Injury Prevention and Title III-D Health Promotion RFP’s. All program performance, recording, and reporting requirements are identical under both RFP’s; there are simply two separate streams of funding for these services so they are included under both RFP’s.
A2) As for guidance on RFP selection, the most distinctive characteristic is that the SS-2018 Title III-D Health Promotion funding is $108,925 and limited to three programs, while SIPP-2018 Senior Injury Prevention is funded at $405,000 and includes ten program options.  

Q3) If, for example, the provider has multiple items installed in the home of one client—such as a grab bar installed in the hallway and another in the bathroom and also has a raised toilet seat for example, does that count as one service unit?
A3) Yes this counts as 1 Home Modification Intervention.
Q4) If there are two clients benefiting from one modification.  For example, both people in a married were frail and the provider had a grab installed in their bathroom, does that count as one service unit?
A4) Yes this counts as 1 Home Modification Intervention.
Q5) If there are two clients benefiting from two modification—for example, the same married couple has 2 grab bars are installed—does that count as one service unit?

A5) Yes this counts as 1 Home Modification Intervention if two grab bars are necessary  
     
to facilitate the ability of the older individual to remain at home.
Q6) After completing the environment assessment, the necessary home modifications that emerge are sometimes ‘non-contractor’ (Home Safety Services)/modifications that staff does with items purchased by the CBO.  This may include installing a motion sensor night light, brighter light bulbs throughout the home, taping down rugs, helping clear clutter all requiring time and cost.  Are those considered service units of home modifications?
A6) Yes, minor repairs/renovations in order to meet safety, health issues, and code standards are included the Home Modification Intervention. These costs are included under the $500 maximum allowance for Home Modification Expenses. Reimbursement must be based on actual costs to the provider agency.
Q7) The environmental assessment and the client education/engagement it includes takes time.  It is a strong proactive measure in keeping their homes safe from falls.  Is there any compensation for this preventive service?  
A7) Yes, In-Home Fall Risk Screening, Assessment, and Education costs are included in the reimbursement rate of $650 per Home Modification Intervention. The AAA is reimbursing for Professional Home Assessment and Education at a maximum of $150; the cost of a Home Modification cannot exceed a $500 maximum.
Q8) Do you have guidance on which requirements on which form should be used and how it is used in an environmental assessment?  I believe various CBOs use various forms.

A8) A particular form is not required at this time.
Q9) This year, some CBOs are using the AAA-approved program ‘Tai Chi for Fall Prevention.’  It is another CDC/Administration on Community Living evidence-based program in the model of Tai Chi for Arthritis.  Is there continued AAA approval for this program as allowable in place of tai chi for better balance?  https://taichiforhealthinstitute.org/tai-chi-for-fall-prevention/
A9) Tai Chi for Arthritis is an acceptable group exercise program for Senior Injury Prevention funds (not Title III-D).  Tai Chi for Arthritis programs must adhere to the following requirements:
a.
Participants must attend a minimum of 16 hours of Tai Chi, either by attending one hour per week for 16 weeks or attending two hours per week for eight weeks;

b.
Program must be led by a certified Tai Chi for Health Institute instructor.

c.
Participants must attend at least one class session per week.

d.
Participants must be strongly encouraged to practice the program at home for 30 minutes at least 4 times per week.
Q10) How were the allotted percentages per county quadrant derived?

A10) The Area Agency on Aging uses a Board of Supervisor approved funding formula which incorporates population counts for minority, low-income, non-minority, language isolation and functionally impaired older adults.  Census data from the 2016/2017 Area Plan was used.  Please note that the allocation amounts are guidelines only.  Actual funding amounts are dependent on the allocations received from state, federal and local funding and the bids received.  Please also note that the guidelines are for overall funding for all programming.  Funding for particular programs may vary quite a bit.  North County, for example, may receive more than the regional amount for nutrition, but less for supportive services.  
Q11) I noticed that Tai Chi: Moving for Better Balance is included under both Supportive Services Programs and SIP Programs.  Are these Tai Chi programs limited only to Moving for Better Balance or other programs such as Tai Chi for Arthritis allowed?
A11) Tai Chi for Arthritis is an acceptable group exercise program for Senior Injury Prevention funds (not Title III-D). See A9) above, for program details.
Q12) The reimbursement for the Lifestyle Integrated Functional Exercise (LiFE) is far too low for a program that requires intake, assessment, 5-7 two hour home sessions by a licensed professional and all the required notetaking, data entry and follow-up on progress and outcomes. It's an import and actually super effective program. Can you increase that reimbursement at least to $650?
A12) The reimbursement rate for Individual In-Home Physical Activity programs is set at $467 per senior. 
Q13) I just saw that the reimbursement for mods is based on actual cost of mod. Does this mean there is no reimbursement for the environmental screening or the education?
A13) The Home Modification program description has been revised to reflect the AAA reimbursement for Professional Home Assessment and Education at a maximum of $150 and Home Modification at a maximum of $500. 
Q14) The Administrative Section says you have 4 pages. Question #3 in that section says. Using   

  the instructions and template provided in Exhibit C, please submit a separate Line-Item  

  Budget for each service category that you bid on." does the budget count as one of those 4 
  pages?
A14) The Line-Item Budget does not count as one of the four pages. 
Q15) In general, does the page count include the actual questions? Or can we eliminate the 
   
question and just use the numbers to define our answers? Also, any requirements on  margins?
A15) The page count includes the questions. It is preferable to include the question with your response rather than number identification only. RFP Section IV. Instructions to Bidders and the RFP Pre-screening Response Checklist contain specific proposal formatting requirements.   
Q16) After reviewing the new RFPs it looks to me that the Health Services is not included in any  

   
of the RFPS as a Service Category.  Is that correct or am I missing something? I want to  

  
 make sure we are at the correct Bidders Conferences.

A16) Health Services is not a funded service category in this RFP.

Q17) Will you be looking for a dollar amount in the LOI (Letter of Intent)?

A17) No.
Q18) For Exhibit B (Insurance) – do we need to provide a certificate now or wait until a contract is awarded?
A18) The certificate of insurance may be provided at the time when the contract is being developed. 

Q19) If we are a current contractor and you have our certificate on file, do we still need to submit another copy?
A19) Yes, an updated certificate of insurance must be provided at the time when the contract is being developed.

Q20) Regarding geographic areas, if we submit for more than one area, should we just choose “countywide” or can we choose multiple areas and countywide for flexibility over the four-year timeframe?

A20) Bid Responses should accurately indicate the service(s) and geographic area(s) which the Bidder is seeking funding and prepared to implement on July 1, 2018.   The response should only reflect one fiscal year.
Q21) On page 15 of the RFP on the Calendar of Events, when is the Award Notification date?

A21) The award notification date is April 16, 2018.
Q22) What are the specifics to qualify for Geri-Fit Strength training instructor?  Can a certified instructor modify an existing program to the Geri-Fit model?  Same question for Tai Chi.
A22) 
For more information about the Geri-Fit program, please see gerifit.com.  For information about Tai Chi, please see http://www.taichimovingforbetterbalance.org/. The AAA requires fidelity to the protocols of the evidence based program that is funded.  
Q23) Administrative and Fiscal Qualifications: For #1 (Staff Summary) can we add a bilingual staffing column to the Staff Summary Form?
A23) The Staff Summary Form should not be altered. The response to Program Delivery question #4 should include the bi-lingual capability for staff directly responsible for delivery of program services.
Q24) Can you send the link for the Letter of Intent for the RFP for Senior Injury Prevention Services?
A24) There is no link for the Letter of Intent. A fax or email stating your intention to submit a Bid Response for the RFP is sufficient. The Letter of Intent is due by 5:00 pm on Wednesday, February 21, 2018.  
Q25) On the budget form under Expenses, are you limited to the line items listed here?  
A25) No, you may add additional lines.
Q26) On the budget form under Revenue/Income source, is the AAA funding requested just for this RFP only?  
A26) Yes.
Q27) On the total agency budget, is it for all AAA money for the entire agency?  
A27) No, the Total Agency Budget refers to the total amount of funding in each category for the entire agency.  
Q28) Is there another RFP that includes Health Services?
A28) No.
Q29) On the RFP SIPP-2018 Response to Written Question, item A1, response to Q1,  clarify the unduplicated clients versus the number of contacts.  
A29) The 167 is the number of unduplicated seniors annually, while the 250 is the number of total contacts made to these seniors.  Our current providers’ experience is that about 1/3 of these contacts are to seniors who need to be seen more than once.
Q30) Do we have to provide Home Assessment and education with every home modification provided or is this an optional service? 
A30) Yes.
Q31) Where can we find the LOI document?  Is there already one or do we create for ourselves?  
A31) Refer to A24 in the SIPP-2018 Addendum for the response to this question.
Q32) If you perform an assessment and found that no modification is needed, do you get the $150? 
A32) No, you cannot perform an assessment and education as a stand-alone service. It has to be part of the modification and will not be reimbursed without the corresponding modification.  
Q33) To clarify on total budget, is it all previous AAA money awarded or all proposed AAA money requesting? 
A33) The total budget if the agency budget, not the program budget.    
Q34) How is a Home Med contact defined?  
A34) Based on the number of contacts you had with the client.  Please refer to the RFP for a definition of contact, which includes screening and assessment through the Home Meds program.
The following participants attended the Bidders Conferences (in no particular order) that were held on January 31, 2018 and February 1, 2018:

	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	1. 
	Senior Support Program of the Tri-Valley
	Nicole Albrecht
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: nalbrecht@ssptv.org

	2. 
	Spectrum Community Services
	Lara Calvert
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: lcalvert@spectrum.org

	3. 
	Advisory Commission on Aging
	Karen Anderson
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: barbados44@aol.com

	4. 
	City of Emeryville
	Kim Burrowes
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: kburrowes@emeryville.org

	5. 
	City of Emeryville
	Brad Helfenberger
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: bhelfenberger@emeryville.org

	6. 
	Spectrum Community Services
	Aaron Wong
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: awong115@gmail.com

	7. 
	CEI
	Aaron McPherson
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: amcpherson@ceielders.org

	8. 
	St. Mary’s Center
	Regan Murphy
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: rmurphy@stmaryscenter.org

	9. 
	St. Mary’s Center 
	Carol Johnson
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: cjohnson@stmaryscenter.org

	10. 
	Spectrum Community Services
	Peggy Herndon
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: pherndon@spectrumcs.org

	11. 
	Lifelong Medical Care
	Marie Loverde
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: mloverde@lifelongmedical.org

	12.
	Lifelong Medical Care
	Deborah Workman
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: dworkman@lifelongmedical.org

	13.
	Life Elder Care
	Patricia Osage
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: posage@lifeeldercare.org

	14.
	Lifelong Medical Care
	Stacey Stein
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: sstein@lifelongmedical.org

	15.
	Afghan Elderly Association
	Arezo Sayid
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: asayid@fremont.gov





This County of Alameda, Social Services Agency (SSA) RFP Addendum has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail. E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources. If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database. This RFP Addendum is also posted on the SSA website at � HYPERLINK "https://alamedasocialservices.org/public/departments/agency_administration/finance/funding_opportunities/CalWorks%20Stage%201%20Child%20Care%20Progmra.cfm" �https://alamedasocialservices.org/public/departments/agency_administration/finance/funding_opportunities/CalWorks%20Stage%201%20Child%20Care%20Progmra.cfm� 


as well as on the General Services Agency (GSA) contracting opportunities website located at � HYPERLINK "http://www.acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractingdetail.jsp?BID_ID=1814" �http://www.acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractingdetail.jsp?BID_ID=1814�. 
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